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Bef ore: Judge Koutras
Statement of the Case

This case concerns a civil penalty proposal initiated by the
petitioner against the respondent pursuant to section 110(a) of
the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U S.C. 0O
820(a), seeking a civil penalty assessnent of $20 for an all eged
violation of the reporting requirenents of 30 C.F. R [50.20(a).
The alleged violation is stated in a section 104(a) citation
served on the respondent's representative by an MSHA inspector on
April 15, 1985.

The matter was scheduled for a hearing on the nerits.
However, the hearing was subsequently cancelled after the parties
agreed to submit the matter to me for summary deci sion pursuant
to Commission Rule 64, 29 C.F.R [02700.64. The parties have
filed cross-nmotions for summary deci sion, with supporting
stipul ati ons and argunents.

| ssue

The issues presented here is whether the respondent violated
the requirenents of 30 C.F.R [50.20(a), and if so, the
appropriate civil penalty which shoul d be assessed taking into
account the requirenents of section 110(i) of the Act.
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Applicable Statutory and Regul atory Provi sions

1. The Federal Mne Safety and Health Act of 1977; Pub. L.
85A164, 30 U.S.C. 801 et seq.

2. Section 110(i) of the 1977 Act, 30 U.S.C. 0820(i).
3. Commission Rules, 29 C.F.R [2700.1 et seq.
4. 30 C.F.R 050.20(a).

Di scussi on

Section 104(a) Citation No. 2403692, issued on April 15,
1985, cites a violation of 30 C.F. R [150.20(a), and the cited
condition or practice is stated as foll ows:

The operator has omitted on Section A the conpany
nane. Section C, No. 9, the condition contributing to
the accident. No. 10, equi pnent involved. No. 11, nane
of witness to accident, if any, on the Mne Accident
and Injury and Il ness Report, MSHA Form 7000A1, for
acci dent that occurred on 3A21A85.

The facts in this case are not in dispute. The parties have
stipulated that on March 21, 1985, at 9:30 a.m, M. John J.
Podl i ski, a m ner enployed by the respondent, slipped while on
duty and bruised his right knee. He continued to work the
remai nder of the work day on March 21, but was off fromwork on
March 22, for reasons associated with the injury he sustained.

The parties stipulated that the respondent filed the
requi red accident report with MSHA on March 25, 1985, and there
is no dispute that when it was filed the conpany nane was omitted
fromSection A, line two of the report, and that itenms 9, 10, 11
of Section C were left blank. Item9 is the space provided for
the full description of the conditions contributing to an
accident; item 10 is the space for describing any equi prment
i nvolved in an accident; and item 11 is the space for listing the
nane of any witness. The citation was issued because of these
omi ssi ons.

In support of the citation, petitioner argues that the
reporting requirenments of 30 C.F.R Part 50 inplenents sections
103(a) and (b) of the Act, and are intended to achi eve the
statutory objective or acquisition and anal ysis of accident,
injury, and illness data for the purpose of reducing
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m ne safety and health hazards. Petitioner states that the
reporting requirenments established by Part 50 provide a nmechani sm
for the identification of those aspects of m ning which need
intensified attention through health and safety regul ation. 44
Fed. Reg. 52827 (1979). Part 50 requires the reporting of al
occupational injuries irrespective of whether there exists a
causal nexus between the miner's work and the injury sustained.
Secretary of Labor v. Freeman United Coal M ning Conpany, 3 MSHC
1447 (1983).

The petitioner points out that the formin question requires
the respondent to fully describe the conditions contributing to
an occupational injury and to quantify the resulting damage or
i mpairment. Petitioner maintains that the failure of the
respondent to conplete question No. 9 on the formon its face
violates 30 C.F.R [50.20(a), and directly inpinges upon MSHA s
ability to conmprehensively conpile data on injury causation
factors. Petitioner also believes that a delay in the reporting
and description of an occupational injury can inpede the
i nvestigative capability of MSHA, and that an om ssion on the
reporting formdefeats the twin goals of the reporting
requi renents of Part 50-swift investigation of accidents and
conpilation of injury causation factors. Since these objectives
are central to MSHA's efforts at health and safety regul ation
petitioner concludes that the partially conpleted formviol at ed
30 CF.R [50.20(a) as a matter of |aw.

The respondent concedes that the purpose and scope of Part
50 is to inplenment MSHA's authority to investigate, to obtain and
utilize information pertaining to mne accidents, injuries, and
illnesses, and that the information received will be used to
develop the rates of injury occurrence, and, data respecting
injury severity.

Respondent acknow edges that 30 C.F.R [50.20A4 sets forth
the criteria for conpletion of Section A of the form and that
this includes identification data such as the mne identification
nunber (1.D.), and the m ne and conpany name. Conceding that the
obvi ous purpose for this information is to identify the mne
| ocation and nane for investigation purposes, the respondent
argues that the information should be read together with the
information at the end of the formwhich requires the nane of the
person conpleting the form the title, date, and the area code
and phone nunber. The respondent asserts that when it provided
the mine I.D. nunber, the location of its mne, the nane of its
clerk, and its phone nunmber, MSHA had all the information it
needed to pronptly investigate. Respondent suggests that had NMSHA
di al ed the
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listed phone nunber, the first thing which would be learned is

t he conpany's nane, and coupled with its listed |I.D. nunber, the
respondent' s invol venent woul d have been readily identified.

Wth regard to itemNo. 9, Section C of the form the
respondent points out that 30 C.F.R [50.20A6 states that the
condition contributing to the accident should be described, and
that this nmeans stating what happened, the reasons therefor, and
the factors which contributed to the injury and danmage
Respondent asserts that these requirenments should be read
together with item Nos. 20, 21, and 22 of the form Respondent
points out that in the report which it filed on March 25, 1985,
it was stated that the enpl oyee slipped and bruised his right
knee. The amended form whi ch MSHA accepted as abatenent stated
that the enpl oyee was "wal ki ng around t he dozer and sprai ned
knee," and the information provided in the initial report stated
the sane "slipping and bruising the knee" information, and that
not hi ng nore coul d be said.

Wth regard to itemNo. 10 as to "equi pnent," respondent
states that it was left blank since no equi pment was invol ved.
[tem No. 11 as to "witnesses” was |eft blank because no witnesses
were invol ved. Respondent suggests that when all of the
information it submtted on its initial formis read together
MSHA had all the information necessary to carry out the purposes
of the Act and regul ati ons. Respondent points out that even with
vi ol ati on, nothing nore was added.

Respondent asserts that the alleged violation and proposed
$20 civil penalty assessnment is based on a de mininmus and highly
techni cal construction of the regul ati ons. Respondent concl udes
that the information provided was in substantial conpliance with
the regul ation, and was sufficient for MSHA to performits
i nformati on gathering duties.

Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons

I conclude and find that the injury suffered by M. Podlisk
was an "occupational injury" as defined by 30 C.F. R [O50.2(e),
and that it was required to be reported on MSHA Form 7000A1, as
stated in 30 CF.R [050.20(a). Wile | agree with the
respondent's assertion that the information furnished on the form
as originally filed with MSHA was in substantial conpliance with
the reporting requirenents of section 50.20(a), | conclude and
find that the failure of the respondent to fully describe the
conditions contributing
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to the accident in question, coupled with the total om ssion of
the information required in question No. 9, constitutes a

viol ation of section 50.20(a). Wiile it is true that the

i nformati on subm tted by the respondent indicated that the
accident victimslipped and brui sed or sprained his knee, there
is no information to explain howit occurred, what caused the
slip, etc. The applicable criteria found in section

50. 20A6(a) (3), required that this information be supplied.

Respondent suggests that since the formwas filled out by
one of its office clerks, the om ssions were the result of
clerical oversight. Wile this may be true, | take note of the
fact that section 50.20(a) requires that the formin question be
conpl eted or reviewed by the respondent’'s principal officer in
charge of health and safety at the mne or the supervisor of the
m ne area in which the accident or injury occurred. | find
nothing in this case to suggest that this was done. It seens to
me that the preparation or review of the formby the mne safety
of ficer, or sone supervisory foreman at the area where the
acci dent occurred, before it was submtted nay have resulted in
the full conpletion of the formand nmay have prevented the
i ssuance of the citation

Wth regard to the respondent's assertion that its failure
to include the name of the operator and to conplete item Nos. 10
and 11 were de mninmus oversights, while it may be true that no
equi prent or w tnesses were involved in the accident, MSHA has no
way of knowi ng that unless the person submitting the form
clarifies it by indicating "none" or otherw se explaining it.
MSHA may wish to clarify its instructions to preclude future
oversi ghts and omi ssions of this kind. Wth respect to the
om ssion of the conmpany name, while it is true that the mne |.D
and tel ephone nunber were supplied, the requirenment that the
conpany name be included on the formseens |like a rather basic
and i nnocuous requirenment that should be conplied with.

In view of the foregoing, |I conclude and find that a
viol ati on has been established, and the citation IS AFFI RVED.

Cvil Penalty Assessnent

The parties have filed no information concerning the six
statutory criteria found in section 110(i) of the Act. However, |
take note of the fact that the violation was assessed as a
"single penalty" by MSHA. The information contained in the
pl eadi ngs and proposed assessnment made by the pleadings reflects
that the respondent is a small operator. | concl ude
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that a civil penalty of $10 is appropriate and reasonable for the
violation in question.

CORDER

The respondent 1S ORDERED to pay a civil penalty in the
amount of $10 for the violation in question, and payment is to be
made to MSHA within thirty (30) days of the date of this
deci sion. Upon receipt of paynment, this matter is dism ssed.

Ceorge A. Koutras
Admi ni strative Law Judge



